THE JOURNAL OF HELLENIC STUDIES

VOLUME LXXX 1960

This Volume is published with assistance from the Trustees of the Nuffield Foundation

CONTENTS

ι.	ANDERSON, J. K.	NOTES ON SOME POINTS IN XENOPHON'S ΠΕΡΙ 'ΠΠΠΚΗΣ.
10.	BOOTH, N. B.	EMPEDOCLES' ACCOUNT OF BREATHING.
16.	BOWRA, C. M.	HOMERIC EPITHETS FOR TROY.
24.	CARNEY, T. F.	PLUTARCH'S STYLE IN THE MARIUS.
3 <mark>2</mark> .	CHALK, H. H. O.	EROS AND THE LESBIAN PASTORALS OF LONGUS.
52.	CORBETT, P. E.	THE BURGON AND BLACAS TOMBS.
61.	DOVER, K. J.	ΔΕΚΑΤΟΣ ΑΥΤΟΣ.
78.	EDWARDS, M. W.	REPRESENTATION OF MAENADS ON ARCHAIC RED-FIGURE VASES.
88.	GOW, A. S. F.	THE GALLUS AND THE LION.
94.	GRAHAM, A. J.	THE AUTHENTICITY OF THE OPKION TΩN OIKIΣTHPΩN OF CYRENE.
112.	HOOKER, G. T. W.	THE TOPOGRAPHY OF THE FROGS.
118.	MAGDOWELL, D.	AIGINA AND THE DELIAN LEAGUE.
122.	NORMAN, A. F.	THE BOOK TRADE IN FOURTH-CENTURY ANTIOCH.
127.	PLOMMER, W. H.	THE ARCHAIC ACROPOLIS: SOME PROBLEMS.
160.	URE, A. D.	EUBOEAN LEKANAI.
168.	VAN DER WAERDEN, B. L.	GREEK ASTRONOMICAL CALENDARS AND THEIR RELATION TO THE ATHENIAN CIVIL CALENDAR.
181.	WATERS, K. H.	SOLON'S 'PRICE-EQUALISATION'.
	NOTES:	
191.	FRENCH, A.	A NOTE ON THUCYDIDES iii 68.5.
191.	MITFORD, T. B.	THE SYLLABIC INSCRIPTION, HOFFMANN No. 106.
194.	SEALEY, R.	THEOPOMPOS AND ATHENIAN LIES.
196.	NOTICES OF BOOKS	
248.	BOOKS RECEIVED.	
251.	INDEXES.	

THE SOCIETY FOR THE PROMOTION OF HELLENIC STUDIES 31-34 GORDON SQUARE, LONDON, W.C.1. PUBLISHED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE SOCIETY

PACE

All rights reserved

THE SOCIETY FOR THE PROMOTION OF HELLENIC STUDIES

OFFICERS AND COUNCIL FOR 1960-1961.

President

PROF. R. P. WINNINGTON-INGRAM, F.B.A.

Vice-Presidents

The following ex-Presidents:

SIR RICHARD LIVINGSTONE, D.LITT., LL.D., 1938-41 PROF. E. R. DODDS, D.LITT., F.B.A., 1948-50 PROF. T. B. L. WEBSTER, LITT.D., F.S.A., 1951-53 PROF. DOROTHY TARRANT, 1954-56

and

SIR FRANK ADCOCK, D.LITT., F.B.A. PROF. BERNARD ASHMOLE, C.B.E., F.B.A. PROF. N. H. BAYNES, D.D., F.B.A. SIR JOHN BEAZLEY, LITT.D., F.B.A.

SIR HAROLD IDRIS BELL, C.B., O.B.E., F.B.A. SIR JOHN FORSDYKE, K.C.B. PROF. D. S. ROBERTSON, F.B.A. E. S. G. ROBINSON, C.B.E., F.B.A. SIR JOHN SHEPPARD, M.B.E., LITT.D.

Council Elected 1959

Elected 1958 Elected 1958 PROF. A. J. BEATTIE J. BOARDMAN PROF. J. M. R. CORMACK A. H. COXON DR. V. EHRENBERG PROF. W. K. C. GUTHRIE, F.B.A. PROF. R. J. HOPPER PROF. L. R. PALMER DR. B. R. REES PROF. R. E. WYCHERLEY

Elected 1959 PROF. A. ANDREWES, F.B.A. R. S. BLUCK J. CHADWICK PROF. J. M. COOK R. M. COOK PROF. R. A. CROSSLAND MISS A. DUKE A. J. GRAHAM G. S. KIRK, F.B.A. PROF. C. MARTIN ROBERTSON

Elected 1960 Elected 1960 PROF. H. C. BALDRY V. DESBOROUGH MISS N. V. DUNBAR M. I. FINLEY W. G. FORREST G. T. GRIFFITH R. A. HIGGINS H. LLOYD-JONES T. T. B. RYDER DR. F. H. STUBBINGS

Editorial Committee

JOHN BOARDMAN (Editor) PROF. P. T. STEVENS (Review Editor)

PROF. A. ANDREWES G. S. KIRK

Trustees

PROF. C. MARTIN ROBERTSON

PROF. BERNARD ASHMOLE

| PROF. R. J. H. JENKINS

Hon. Treasurer BERNARD RICKATSON-HATT

Hon. Secretary | SIR JOHN FORSDYKE, K.C.B. | PROF. STERLING DOW

Hon. Secretary for U.S.A.

Secretary

MRS. F. M. BUTT, M.A.

Hon. Auditors

MESSRS. DAVEY, BRIDGWATER & Co., 91-3 BISHOPSGATE, LONDON, E.C.2.

Officers of the Joint Library

Hon. Librarian PROF. E. G. TURNER, F.B.A.

Librarian MISS J. E. SOUTHAN

Keeper of Lantern Slides MRS. M. J. THORNTON

Bankers

MESSRS. COUTTS & Co., 15 LOMBARD STREET, E.C.3.

Contributions to the Journal should be sent to John Boardman, The Ashmolean Museum. Oxford. Books intended for review should be addressed to The Librarian, 31-34 Gordon Square, W.C.1.

THE BRITISH ACADEMY

CROMER GREEK PRIZE

WITH the view of maintaining and encouraging the study of Greek, particularly among the young, the late Lord Cromer founded a Prize, to be administered by the British Academy, for the best Essay on any subject connected with the language, history, art, literature, or philosophy of Ancient Greece.

The Prize, which is ordinarily a sum of \pounds 150, is awarded biennially in May,* under the following Rules:—

1. Competition is open to all British subjects and subjects of Eire of either sex who will be under thirty-five years of age on 31 December preceding the award.

2. Any such person desirous of competing must send in to the Secretary of the British Academy on or before 1 June of the year preceding the award the title of the subject proposed by him or her. The Academy may approve (with or without modification) or disapprove the subject; their decision will be intimated to the competitor as soon as possible.

3. Preference will be given, in approval of subjects proposed, to those which deal with aspects of the Greek genius and civilization of large and permanent significance over those which are of a minute or highly technical character.

4. Any Essay which has already received or is in competition for another prize of the same nature will be inadmissible. A candidate to whom the Prize has been awarded will not be eligible to compete for it again. But an Essay which has not received the Prize may be submitted again (with or without alteration) in a future year so long as the writer remains eligible under Rule 1.

5. Essays of which the subject has been approved must be sent in to the Secretary of the Academy on or before 31 December of the year preceding the award. They must be typed or printed and should have a note attached stating the main sources of information used.

6. It is recommended that the Essays should not exceed 20,000 words, exclusive of notes. Notes should not run to an excessive length.

7. The Adjudicators shall be free to consider published work not submitted.

Communications should be addressed to 'The Secretary of the British Academy, Burlington Gardens, London, W.1'.

* The next award will be in 1961.

The Woodwork of Greek Roofs A. TREVOR HODGE

Dr Hodge demonstrates the construction of the wooden roofing of classical Greek temples of the era 600-400 B.C. in Greece, Southern Italy, and Sicily, from a study of existing stonework and of ancient documents. 26 plans; 50 photographs. Ready September. About 55s. net

Towards a Text of Cicero: Ad Atticum D. R. SHACKLETON BAILEY

Dr Shackleton Bailey is preparing a text of Ad Atticum IX-XVI for the series Oxford Classical Texts. In this preparatory volume he gives a number of difficult or corrupt passages with a discussion of their difficulties, and makes suggestions for emendations. CAMBRIDGE CLASSICAL STUDIES. 275. 6d. net

Classical Education in Britain M. L. CLARKE

Professor Clarke examines classical education in England, Scotland, and Ireland during the four centuries since the Renaissance. He treats schools and universities in each country, noting, with much solid detail, the main foundations, innovations, and reforms. 32s. 6d. net

TWO CAMBRIDGE PAPERBACKS OF INTEREST TO CLASSICISTS

Before and after Socrates F. M. CORNFORD

'A clear insight into the development of Greek philosophy . . . a brilliant commentary on the Greek mind and its attitude to life.' THE TIMES LITERARY SUPPLEMENT. Paperback, 7s. 6d. net

Greek Literature for the Modern Reader H. C. BALDRY

A vigorous, personal, selective account in plain language of the principal achievements of Greek literature. Paperback, 13s. 6d. net

CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY PRESS

BENTLEY HOUSE, 200 EUSTON ROAD, LONDON, N.W.I

Merit and Responsibility

A STUDY IN GREEK VALUES

Arthur W. H. Adkins

... a searching and lucid exposition of the evolution of Greek moral values.... Historians, philosophers, and classical scholars alike will be grateful for this systematic study of a complex theme.'
THE GUARDIAN 42s.

Cretan Seals

WITH A CATALOGUE OF THE MINOAN GEMS IN THE ASHMOLEAN MUSEUM

V.E.G. Kenna

In discussing the various uses of numerous ancient Cretan seals which survive in excellent condition, the author shows how archaeologists have used this evidence to construct a chronology and form a picture of contemporary Minoan trade and culture over a thousand years. *Illustrated* £5 5s. net

Plato: Gorgias

A Revised Text with Introduction and Commentary by E. R. Dodds

⁶... Professor Dodds's fine edition (which both thoroughly overhauls the manuscript tradition and supplies a commentary as wide-ranging as it is perspicacious) fills a gap untouched in this country since 1890.⁷ THE TIMES LITERARY SUPPLEMENT 45s. net

Euripides: Bacchae

Second edition, edited with Introduction and Commentary by E. R. Dodds

The introduction and commentary have been revised throughout. Account is also taken of fresh evidence on the text, furnished by a new papyrus; indexes have been added. 21s. net

OXFORD CLASSICAL TEXTS

Aristotelis Ars Rhetorica

Edited by Sir David Ross

"... this volume from the hands of so experienced a scholar is a most welcome edition." THE TIMES EDUCATIONAL SUPPLEMENT

25s. net

OXFORD UNIVERSITY PRESS

42s. net

A SHORT INTRODUCTION TO THE GREEK LANGUAGE

by George THOMSON

Professor of Greek in the University of Birmingham

IN THE PRESS (JULY 1960) PROBABLY 15s. net

Based on courses given at Birmingham University, designed for beginners, this book starts with historical and comparative linguistics, then presents the history of Greek from the ancient language to Modern Greek. It is hoped that the book will serve both as a textbook for classes and as an introduction for individual students.

EARLY GREEK ELEGISTS

by Sir Maurice BOWRA (The Martin Classical Lectures 1935)

REPRINT CLOTH 20s.

LES SOURCES DE **PLOTIN**

Ten Papers and Discussions in the original languages

by

E. R. DODDS, WILLY THEILER, PIERRE HADOT, HENRY-CHARLES PUECH, HEINRICH DÖRRIE, VINCENZO CILENTO, R. HARDER, H. R. SCHWYZER, A. H. ARMSTRONG, PAUL HENRY

XIII, 463 PP., CLOTH 55s. NET

Fondation Hardt: Entretiens sur l'Antiquité Classique: Vol. 5

HEFFER * CAMBRIDGE

BOOKS ON GREEK HISTORY, ART, ARCHAEOLOGY, NUMISMATICS, LITERATURE, LANGUAGE, PALAEOGRAPHY, PHILOSOPHY, RELIGION, SCIENCE, etc.

British and Foreign, New and Secondhand Books bought, individually or in collections.

W. HEFFER & SONS LTD.

Petty Cury, Cambridge. Telephone 58351

EDGAR | Pagan Mysteries wind | in the Renaissance

"His book . . . touches more than Italian painting. It touches Spenser, Donne, Yeats, indeed by implication all art of a natural glow that is beyond Nature." Geoffrey Grigson The Observer

"... the philosophy of the Renaissance and its relation to the art of its own day must be studied with new and special methods. In this direction Edgar Wind's book undoubtedly represents a contribution of the greatest importance." Eugenio Garin The Burlington Magazine

"... difficult, absorbing, and disturbing, a fascinating combination of high scholarship and massive commonsense." Eric John The Tablet "The urbanity with which Professor Wind moves between the fields of art, literature, philosophy and theology . . . provides the fullest means of restating the conceit, both in painting and poetry." W. M. Marchant Art News and Review

"Of the scores of interpretations of Botticelli's Primavera, his seems to me the most convincing and the most poetic...."

Sir Kenneth Clark The Listener

"... a tour de force in iconographical method." The Times Literary Supplement

With 50 pages of half-tone and line illustrations. 50/-

Faber and Faber Limited

T. BURTON-BROWN Early Mediterranean

Migrations

The author, an assistant keeper at the Manchester Museum, describes pottery found in Kahun in lower Egypt by Sir Flinders Petrie, and now housed in the Manchester Museum. Its particular interest is that parallels to some of the vessels have been found in other regions of the Near East. The existence of such similarities has not been fully appreciated or studied in the past because of the incompleteness of the documentation.

In addition to examining the pottery, the author describes the Near Eastern archaeology of the earliest part of the second millennium which he considers is illuminated by the Kahun objects. He suggests that periodic migrations from east to west greatly influenced the development of the local civilisations of the Near East and seeks to support this view by examining the evidence of objects which point towards the presence in the Near East at this time of branches of Indo-European speaking peoples.

Demy 8vo. 18s. net

A. ROWE

Cyrenaican Expeditions 1955–7

In 1952, under the sponsorship of the University of Manchester, Mr A. Rowe directed archaeological excavations in the ancient city of Cyrene. Work was resumed during the years 1955, 1956 and 1957 under the same auspices. The first technical account of the free-standing and rock-cut tombs at Cyrene, as well as a brief historical sketch of Cyrenaica as a whole, was published in 1956 under the title *Cyrenaican Expedition*, 1952. This new volume continues the description of the tombs and includes details of the objects found in all four expeditions, together with a section on the coins, contributed by John F. Healy.

> 14 figures, 42 half-tone plates containing over 130 illustrations, and 4 colour plates. Demy 4to. 42s net

MANCHESTER UNIVERSITY PRESS 316-324 OXFORD ROAD, MANCHESTER 13

SUPPLEMENTUM EPIGRAPHICUM GRAECUM

S.E.G. is published regularly as a review of Greek Epigraphy. As far as possible, it gives references to work done during each year on or relating to Greek inscriptions, and reprints new or emended texts. This offers a service which, it is hoped, is of value not only to epigraphic specialists but also to classical scholars in general.

To assist him in making the *Supplementum* as complete as possible, the editor would be grateful if scholars who publish studies on Greek Epigraphy, or substantially using epigraphic material, would send him a notice (or if possible a reprint) of their work. Their co-operation in this way would be greatly appreciated.

All communications should be addressed to the Editor

A. G. WOODHEAD, CORPUS CHRISTI COLLEGE, CAMBRIDGE, ENGLAND

CAMBRIDGE

EPIGRAPHICAL COLLECTION

The attention of members is drawn to the collection of squeezes of Greek inscriptions in the Museum of Classical Archaeology at Cambridge.

This collection already contains about 2,000 squeezes. These are drawn mainly from Attica and Asia Minor; but additions are constantly being made from all parts of the Greek world.

Members of the Society who may wish to consult this collection are cordially invited to do so; and in special cases arrangements can be made for sending out a small number of squeezes on loan by post. The Museum authorities would also receive most gratefully any squeezes in private possession which their owners might wish to make available for general use.

> Enquiries should be addressed to THE LIBRARIAN, MUSEUM OF CLASSICAL ARCHAEOLOGY LITTLE ST. MARY'S LANE, CAMBRIDGE

The Geographical Fragments of Hipparchus

edited by D. R. DICKS

Last edited in 1869, the extant Greek fragments of Hipparchus' important treatise Against the 'Geography' of Eratosthenes are here collected with translations, a detailed commentary, and an introduction which discusses Hipparchus' contribution to the development of ancient mathematical geography in the light of modern research. UNIVERSITY OF LONDON CLASSICAL STUDIES, NO. 1. 45s net

Menander's Dyskolos

translated into English prose by W. G. ARNOTT

This is the first English translation of the *Dyskolos* to be published and is specially intended for stage production. Mr. Arnott's version was used for the performance of the play given during the General Meeting of the Classical Association at Southampton in April, 1960. 5s net

Tradition and Personal Achievement in Classical Antiquity

W. K. C. GUTHRIE and B. A. VAN GRONINGEN

The introductory and closing addresses delivered at the Third International Congress of Classical Studies in London, 1959. 3s 6d net

Alfred Edward Housman, 1859-1936

OTTO SKUTSCH

An address delivered at the centenary celebrations in University College London during the Third International Congress of Classical Studies. 3s 6d net

UNIVERSITY OF LONDON • THE ATHLONE PRESS

INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY BOOKSELLERS LIMITED



issue regularly

CATALOGUES AND LISTS ON CLASSICAL ANTIQUITY

and other subjects within the field of the Humanities.

They also welcome offers of small or large collections

of books for sale.

39 STORE STREET · LONDON · W·C·I · Tel. Museum 8959

UNIVERSITY OF LONDON **INSTITUTE OF CLASSICAL STUDIES**

31-34 GORDON SQUARE, W.C.1

The objects of the Institute are to promote the advancement of the study of Classics; to provide opportunities for contacts between scholars in the Classical field, both within the University and from other centres of learning at home and abroad; and to arrange facilities for advanced study and research and for the training of postgraduate students in Classics and cognate subjects.

PUBLICATIONS

Bulletin (Annual) No. 7 - 1960. Price 10s. (Previous numbers available.) Bulletin - Supplement No. 3, Mycenaean Civilization, Publications since 1935, A Bibliography compiled by Brenda E. Moon, 1957. Price 10s.

Bulletin - Supplement No. 4, Catalogue of the MSS. of Ovid's Metamorphoses by Franco Munari, 1957. Price 10s.

Bulletin - Supplement No. 5, The Telephus of Euripides by E. W. Handley and John Rea, 1957. Price 12s. 6d.

Bulletin - Supplement No. 6, The Textual Criticism of Documentary Papyri - Prolegomena by Herbert C. Youtie, 1958. Price 10s. Bulletin - Supplement No. 7, The Knossos Tablets by Emmett L. Bennett, John Chadwick and

Michael Ventris. Second edition with corrections and additions by John Chadwick with the assistance of Fred W. Householder, 1959. Price 15s.

Bulletin - Supplement No. 8, Phlyax Vases by A. D. Trendall, 1959. Price 10s. Bulletin - Supplement No. 9, Monuments Illustrating Old and Middle Comedy by T. B. L.

Webster. In the Press.

Studies in Mycenaean Inscriptions and Dialect V - 1959 by John Chadwick, L. R. Palmer and L. J. D. Richardson. Price 5s. (Volumes III and IV available.)

Preliminary Investigations into the Cretan Linear A Script. G. P. Goold and Maurice Pope, 1955. Price 5s.

Publications distributed by

INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY BOOKSELLERS LTD. 39 Store Street, London, W.C.1

FONDATION HARDT

The "Fondation Hardt", La Chandoleine, Vandoeuvres near Geneva, Switzerland, is in a position to invite as its guests, for a shorter or longer period, scholars and post-graduates in the field of classics who wish to complete their research in peaceful surroundings. Six guest-rooms are available at the "Fondation", as well as a library consisting of over 8,000 volumes mainly on classical literature.

Applications, accompanied if the case may be by references, should be sent to the above address not later than December 15th of each year for the following year. Applications sent in after that date will only be taken into consideration in special cases. Decisions are taken by the "Conseil Consultatif de la Fondation".

Joint Library of the Hellenic and Roman Societies

LANTERN SLIDES

The Slides Collection is arranged in two main sections:

- (a) A general collection of over 10,000 slides covering a very wide range of subjects: the major Prehellenic sites, the Greek mainland and islands, Rome and Italy and the Roman Empire; sculpture, vases, painting, mosaic; coins; papyri.
- (b) About 40 sets of slides on specific subjects, compiled by specialists who have also written notes to accompany the slides. These include Prehellenic Greece, Greek Gods and Heroes, Homeric Pictures, Greek Drama, Greek Sculpture, Greek Painting, Greek Vases, Athens, Greek Cities, Greek and Roman Architecture, Transport in the Ancient World, Ancient Furniture, Roman Portraits, The Roman Imperial Army, Rome, Ostia, Roman Gaul, Roman Britain, The Roman Wall.

Over 1000 colour slides $(2 \times 2 \text{ in.})$ are now available. There are sets, with notes, on the Athenian Agora excavations, Ostia and Pompeii; and a general collection which includes many sites in Greece, Roman Britain, Roman France and Italy; Etruscan tomb paintings, Roman frescoes and mosaics, and objects from the Greek and Roman Life room of the British Museum.

Slides are available to all members of each Society at a charge of 10s. a set, or 4d. each for individual slides, plus postage.

A film strip of *Greek Gods and Heroes* may be hired at a cost of 7s. 6d. Copies may also be bought for 17s. 6d., inclusive of notes.

The annual subscription to each Society is £2. SCHOOLS ARE ELIGIBLE FOR MEMBERSHIP. For particulars apply to the Secretary of either Society at 31-34 Gordon Square, W.C.1.

Hellenic Air Cruises

to Greece and the Aegean Islands, Asia Minor,

Rhodes, Crete and Istanbul

from

70 guineas

The tour charge in each case includes the following:

- Air travel throughout the tour from London back to London.
- Hotel accommodation throughout the tour with full board. First- or second-class hotels are used.
- Meals on the flights and the services of the crew and air hostess throughout the tour.
- Coach journeys from the London air terminal to airport and vice versa; and between airports and hotels at every point of the tour.
- The services of our couriers or representatives, one of whom will be solely responsible for the passengers at each point.
- All gratuities and taxes at the hotels.

We have a limited number of single rooms for people travelling alone, on payment of a small supplement. In the case of each tour a comprehensive programme of excursions will be arranged, but if you prefer to undertake your visits alone you will not be pressed to participate in the excursions. We engage leading Greek archaeological guides to accompany the excursions.

Rome—Athens—The Acropolis and the Museums—Sounion—Mycenae—Tiryns—Nauplia-Epidaurus—The Island of Aegina—Mykonos and Delos—Kaisariani Monastery—Arachova— Delphi—Naples and Paestum. A fortnight's Hellenic Air Cruise which provides the opportunity to see many of the outstanding classical sites on the Greek mainland as well as visits to islands in the Aegean. * Athens-The Classical Monuments-Mt. Cithaeron-Eleutherae-Aegosthena-Marathon-Rhodes—Lindos—Kamiros—Heraklion—Knossos—Phaistos—Agia Triada—Gortyna—Pisa. A 12-day air cruise which has been immensely popular and incorporates three-day visits to lovely Rhodes and historic Crete with a final night spent at Pisa. Daphni—Corinth—Islands of Poros and Hydra—Izmir (Smyrna)—Ephesus—Selcuk—Panaya Kapulu—Kemelpasa—Istanbul—Salonika—Rome. A 12-day air cruise which includes not only the Greek mainland but also visits of exceptional interest to the coast of Asia Minor, Izmir, and with three days in Istanbul before returning via Salonika and Rome. Libya, Egypt, The Middle East and the Holy Land 19- and 20-day air cruises are arranged during the autumn and spring with accommodation in first-class hotels and with air travel throughout, visiting many places of religious and historical significance including the Lebanon, Damascus, Jerusalem, Petra, Cyrenaica, Memphis, Cairo and Luxor from 155 guineas Write or telephone for our Hellenic programme NGS LIMITED 48 PARK ROAD, BAKER STREET, LONDON, N.W.1 Telegrams: Wingavia, London Telephone: AMBassador 1001

Society for Hellenic Travel SPRING CRUISE

5th-21st April, 1961

in the

ss JERUSALEM

(10,000 Gross Registered Tons)

to GREECE AND THE GREEK ISLANDS, CYPRUS, TURKEY AND THE HOLY LAND

will call at GYTHION (for MYSTRA), DIKILI (for PERGAMUM), VOLOS (for the prehistoric site at DIMINI, MAKRINITSA, or an optional visit to the METEORA), ATHENS, CRETE (for KNOSSOS and PHAESTOS), LIMASSOL and FAMAGUSTA (for Crusader Castles and Classical Sites in Cyprus), HAIFA (for sites in ISRAEL, with numerous alternatives including MEGIDDO, CAESAREA, CAPERNAUM and BEIT SHE'ARIM as well as NAZARETH, TIBERIUS and ACRE OF THE KNIGHTS), RHODES and PYLOS. Special arrangements will also be made for an expedition from Cyprus into Jordan to QUMRAN, JERICHO and JERUSALEM, rejoining the ship at Haifa.

The Cruise will be accompanied by five distinguished Guest Lecturers including a specialist in Mediterranean flora.

Berths from 86 gns

including travel to and from Genoa

* * * * * * * *

The Society is offering one free place on the cruise for a student member interested in Mediterranean archaeology. This will take the form of a scholarship to be awarded on the basis of an essay and entries will be judged by a panel of the Society's Honorary Members. Full details of this, and of the Society's general activities may be obtained from the Assistant Honorary Secretary.

> MISS M. W. McCALL, 4, Argyll Mansions, Chichele Road, London, N.W.2

* • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Full details will be available in the New Year of the Society's

LATER HELLENIC CRUISES

* * * * * * *

For bookings and all further particulars apply to the Organisers and Sole Agents_

FAIRWAYS & SWINFORD (TRAVEL) LTD.

18, St. George Street, Hanover Square, London, W.1.

HELLENIC TRAVELLERS CLUB 1961 HELLENIC CRUISES

Cruise No. 22-31st March-16th April, 1961

Yugoslavia, Greece and Turkey

Venice, Dubrovnik, Delphi, Mistra, Sparta, Athens, Daphni and Eleusis or Sounion, Santorini, Delos, Volos, Meteora, Cape Helles, Gallipoli Peninsular, Troy, The Bosphorus, Istanbul, Pergamum, Ephesus or Priene, Patmos, Knossos, Mallia or Gortyna and Phaestos, Olympia, Korcula, Venice.

Cruise No. 23—15th April–1st May, 1961

Yugoslavia, Greece, Turkey, Lebanon and Cyprus

Venice, Dubrovnik, Pylos, Knossos, Antalya, Perge, Aspendos, Beirut, Byblos, Krak des Chevaliers, Baalbek (Optional Air Excursions to either Palmyra and Damascus; or Jerusalem and Bethlehem; or Petra), Famagusta, Salamis, Enkomi, Nicosia, Kyrenia, Rhodes, Kamiros, Delos, Mykonos, Athens, Daphni and Eleusis or Sounion, Olympia, Korcula, Venice.

Cruise No. 24-30th April-16 May, 1961

Yugoslavia, Greece and Turkey

Venice, Dubrovnik, Olympia, Knossos, Antalya, Perge, Aspendos, Side, Rhodes, Lindos or Philerimos and Kamiros, Ephesus or Priene, Patmos, Cape Helles, Gallipoli Peninsular, Troy, The Bosphorus, Istanbul, Delos, Athens, Daphni and Eleusis or Sounion, Nauplion, Mycenae, Tiryns, Asine, Epidauros, Delphi, Venice.

Cruise No. 25-9th August-26th August, 1961

Yugoslavia, Greece and Turkey

From Venice back to Venice. Details of itinerary will be available in the autumn.

Cruise No. 26-25th August-11th September, 1961

Yugoslavia, Greece, Turkey, Lebanon and Cyprus

From Venice back to Venice. Details of itinerary will be available in the autumn.

Cruise No. 27—10th September-27th September, 1961

Greece, Egypt and Yugoslavia

From Venice back to Venice. Details of itinerary will be available in the autumn.

EACH CRUISE WILL BE ACCOMPANIED BY 5 OR 6 GUEST LECTURERS

Guest Lecturers who have accompanied previous Hellenic Cruises include:

Prof. A. Andrewes, Sir Maurice Bowra, Sir William Calder, Lord David Cecil, Mr. John C. Dancy, Prof. E. R. Dodds, The Rt. Rev. The Lord Bishop of Exeter, Mr. D. E. L. Haynes, Sir Gerald Kelly, Miss Kathleen Kenyon, Prof. H. D. F. Kitto, Sir Harry Luke, Sir Compton Mackenzie, Mr. Michael Maclagan, Prof. M. E. L. Mallowan, The Rev. Gervase Mathew, Mr. Alan Moorehead, Dr. Walter F. Oakeshott, The Rev. Canon Guy Pentreath, Mr. Stewart Perowne, Sir John Sheppard, Prof. W. B. Stanford, Sir John Summerson, Sir Ronald Syme, Prof. Eric G. Turner, Mr. J. B. Ward Perkins, Prof. T. B. L. Webster, Sir John Wolfenden and Sir Mortimer Wheeler.

PRICES FROM 90 GNS. TO 345 GNS.

For full details and reservations apply to:

W. F. & R. K. SWAN (Hellenic) LTD. 260 (HSJ) TOTTENHAM COURT ROAD, LONDON, W.I

Telephones: MUSeum 8070 (12 lines)

Telegrams: Swanelnic, London Telex

THE JOURNAL OF HELLENIC STUDIES

VOLUME LXXX

1960

PUBLISHED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE SOCIETY FOR THE PROMOTION OF HELLENIC STUDIES

MDCCCCLX

The Rights of Translation and Reproduction are Reserved

CONTENTS

Anderson, J. K	••		ΠΕΡΙ	
		$\Pi\Pi\Pi KH\Sigma \dots \dots \dots \dots$	••	I
Воотн, N. B	••	Empedocles' Account of Breathing	••	10
Bowra, C. M	••	Homeric Epithets for Troy	••	16
CARNEY, T. F	•••	Plutarch's Style in the Marius	••	24
Снаск, Н. Н. О.	••	Eros and the Lesbian Pastorals of Longus	••	32
Corbett, P. E	••	The Burgon and Blacas Tombs	••	52
Dover, K. J.	••	Δ EKATO Σ AYTO Σ	••	61
Edwards, M. W.		Representation of Maenads on Archaic Red-F Vases	igure	78
Gow, A. S. F	••	The Gallus and the Lion	••	88
Graham, А. J	••	The Authenticity of the OPKION T Ω N OIKIZ of Cyrene	THPΩN	ז 94
Hooker, G. T. W.		The Topography of the Frogs	••	112
MacDowell, D.		Aigina and the Delian League		118
Norman, A. F	•••	The Book Trade in Fourth-Century Antioch		122
PLOMMER, W. H	••	The Archaic Acropolis: Some Problems		127
Ure, A. D	••	Euboean Lekanai	••	160
van der Waerden, B. L.		Greek Astronomical Calendars and their Rela to the Athenian Civil Calendar		168
WATERS, K. H	•••	Solon's 'Price-Equalisation'		181
Notes:				
French, A	••	A Note on Thucydides iii 68.5	••	191
MITFORD, T. B	••	The Syllabic Inscription, Hoffmann 106		191
Sealey, R	••	Theopompos and Athenian Lies		194
Notices of Books	••		••	196
BOOKS RECEIVED	••		••	248
Indexes	••		••	251